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History of the nominated place or 
object: 

As part of the short-lived Government system of Special Surveys privately 
commissioned between 1839 and 1841 by determined land capitalists, a 
4,000-acre area flanking both banks of the Gawler River was 
commissioned by George Milner Stephen, Colonial Secretary and son-in-
law to Captain John Hindmarsh, Governor of South Australia. He had come 
across it on expedition with other government survey officials including his 
father-in-law, Governor Hindmarsh. This ninth special survey was referred 
to as the North Para (Gawler) Special Survey; it also encompassed the 
mouth of the river and its tributaries, and ‘Strange Creek’ (later Port 
Gawler) was included. One of the largest pastoral properties north of 
Adelaide at the time, the property was initially referred to as the ‘Milner 
Estate’.  
 
In January 1840 the property was sold to Captains John Ellis and William 
Allen, both of whom had arrived in South Australia in 1839. At this point it 
was formerly renamed ‘Port Gawler Estate’. Ellis and Allen apparently 
occupied homesteads on both sides of the river, however it cannot be 
confirmed if the northern homestead was the core of the main Buckland 
Park homestead or that closer to the river and referred to as the ‘Gawler 
River Homestead’. Ellis and Allen were hugely successful in pastoral 
interests, not only on the Adelaide Plains but the mid-north, Eyre Peninsula 
and southeast. They ran livestock, including a large flock of sheep, but also 
pursued other business interests and politics and were partners in the 
lucrative Burra copper mine.  
 
In 1856 the pastoral enterprise was sold to Drs William John and John 
Harris Browne of Booborowie. The Brownes enlarged the land holding to 
over 40,000 acres of freehold and leasehold land and renamed it ‘Buckland 
Park Estate’. They were to become amongst the largest and most 
successful pastoralists in South Australia and the Northern Territory with 
interests in fifteen separate stations. The property was used to fatten stock 
from their drier, northern properties and as a breeding stud. W J Browne’s 
son, L G Browne, acquired Buckland Park in 1885, and his cousin, Tom 
Landsdowne Browne, took over the property three years later. 
 
A tender notice by Matheson, the Brownes’ property manager, to produce 
50,000 bricks in 1877 indicates that development on the property was 
occurring, however it cannot be determined conclusively which building(s) 
the bricks were being manufactured for. The exact date and details of 
alterations to the subject homestead are also not known, however tender 
notices by property manager S Matheson for production of bricks in 1895 
and by architect FJ Naish for ‘additions to Buckland Park Head Station’ in 
1896, suggest that one of the two original homesteads was being enlarged. 
A subsequent tender notice in 1903 by English & Soward also called for 
‘Additions to Buckland Park homestead’. These two dates align with the 
architectural style of the additions to the red brick homestead on the 
northern side of the river.  The property was central to occasions of local 
and State significance including regular social, sporting, hunting and 
coursing events, including a Royal visit by the Duke and Duchess of 
Cornwall and York, future King and Queen of England, in 1901.  
 
During the Browne’s ownership the agricultural improvements were also 
notable and multiple artesian bores were sunk, some of the first in the area, 
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providing immense supplies of fresh water. The stone tanks adjacent to the 
Homestead and the Implement and Cattle Shed may date from this era. 
 
George Brooks and his son, Edmund, graziers and enterprising 
pastoralists, purchased the property including both the northern and 
southern homesteads from the Brownes in 1911. Edmund Brooks realised 
the potential of the property for fattening stock so close to the Adelaide 
markets and abattoirs and developed a system of flood irrigation and 
pasture improvement by constructing flood gates along the Gawler River 
which passed through the property. He became a huge pastoral landowner 
and highly influential in the South Australian agricultural industry; he was 
also chairman of the District Council of Port Gawler from 1927-29 and 
1935-1951. The Brooks family retained ownership of the property until 1996 
when it was subdivided for sale in seven lots. 
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Historical sources used to support  
your nomination: 
Please attach copies of pages from 
publications or newspaper articles as 
appropriate. 
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Walker Corporation. Sash Consulting Services, Adelaide, October 2008. 
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Aerial image indicating relationship of three former Buckland Park homesteads. Note, southern homestead complex is not 
included in this assessment. 
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Detailed aerial image indicating relationship of significant buildings within the northern homestead and farming complex. 
Refer image above for location of Gawler River Homestead and bridge. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 






